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statement


This proceeding was instituted by the issuance of Civil Penalty Assessment Notice (“CPAN”) No. 97-E-C-7.  This CPAN alleged 60 violations of this Commission’s Motor Carrier Safety Rules, 4 Code of Colorado Regulations (“CCR”) 723-15, and sought civil penalties in the amount of $3,800.  By order and notice dated December 1, 1997, the matter was set for a hearing to be held on January 5, 1997 in a Commission hearing room in Denver, Colorado.  At the assigned place and time the undersigned called the matter for hearing.  During the course of the hearing Exhib-its 1 through 17 were identified, offered, and admitted into evi-dence.  At the conclusion of the hearing the undersigned Admin-istrative Law Judge (”ALJ”) took the matter under advisement.


In accordance with § 40-6-109, C.R.S., the ALJ now transmits to the Commission the record and exhibits in this pro-ceeding along with a written recommended decision.


findings of fact


Golden A & B Limousine, Inc. (“Golden A & B”), is the Respondent in this proceeding.  Golden A & B is a corporation incorporated in the State of Colorado, and it operates as a lux-ury limousine provider under Registration No. LL-385 issued by this Commission.


On October 10, 1997, a compliance investigator from this Commission performed an annual audit and safety inspection of Golden A & B.  This annual inspection resulted in the CPAN which is the subject of this proceeding.


Lines 1 through 4 of the CPAN allege that Golden A & B on four occasions permitted Basher Salihi to drive for Golden A & B, when he had not been physically qualified in the last 24 months.  This alleges a violation of § 391.11(b)(6). �  Golden A & B could not produce a medical certificate for Basher Salihi during the annual inspection.  At hearing, Golden A & B produced two medical certificates.  Both were admitted into evidence, the first over Staff’s objection that it was an obviously altered document.  The month of the date of examination could have been altered.  In addition, the name of the examining doctor that is printed does not match the signature of the examining doctor.  On balance, the undersigned assigns no probative value to the first medical certificate dated August 4, 1997.  The second medical certificate has as an expiration date of October 10, 1999, and it was obviously issued after the inspection.  Therefore it is found that Staff has proven violations 1 through 4.


Alleged violations 5 through 8 are the same as 1 through 4 but pertain to different dates and for a different driver, namely, Alia Salihi.  Staff’s investigator testified that Alia was one of the main drivers for Golden A & B, as related to him by Basher Salihi.  In addition, Golden A & B produced driving records for Alia which the Staff utilized as the basis for its report.  See Exhibit 6.  Golden A & B’s claim that Alia Bashir was not a driver is specifically rejected.  Therefore it is found that Staff has proven violations 5 through 8.


Violations 9 through 12 allege that Golden A & B used a driver who had not furnished an employment application, namely, Basher Salihi.  This alleges a violation of § 391.21.  Golden A & B produced an employment application at hearing which it claimed was in its possession during the inspection but which could not be produced.�  However, a review of the employment application indicates that it does not meet the requirements of § 391.21.� Thus Staff has proven by a preponderance of the evidence that Basher Salihi drove for Golden A & B without having furnished a proper employment application.


Alleged violations 13 through 16 of the CPAN allege that Golden A & B violated similar provisions concerning no employment application for Alia Salihi.  Again, while Golden A & B contended that Alia was not a driver for Golden A & B, the evidence proves otherwise.  Therefore Staff has proven viola-tions 13 through 16.


Alleged violations 17 through 20 allege that Golden A & B used a driver who had not furnished an annual list of traffic violations, namely, Basher Salihi.  This alleges a violation of § 391.11(b)(8).  However, Golden A & B produced at hearing a motor vehicle record that was apparently produced on October 3, 1997, prior to the inspection, which contains the required information.  Therefore counts 17 through 20 should be dismissed.


Alleged violations 21 through 24 allege the same viola-tion for driver Alia Salihi.  Golden A & B produced no informa-tion which would indicate that it did have an annual list of traffic violations from Alia Salihi, and Golden A & B’s defense that Alia is not a driver has been rejected above.  Therefore Staff has proven violations 21 through 24.


Violations 25 through 28 allege that Golden A & B failed to investigate Basher Salihi’s driving record.  This alleges a violation of § 393.23(a)(1).  Counts 29 through 32 allege the same violation concerning Alia Salihi.  However, Staff offered insufficient evidence to support a finding that Golden A & B made no investigation of the driving record of either.�


Counts 33 through 36 allege that Golden A & B failed to investigate Basher Salihi’s employment record.  This alleges a violation of § 391.23(a)(2).  Counts 37 through 40 allege that Golden A & B failed to investigate Alia Salihi’s employment record.  Staff introduced no evidence sufficient to support a finding that Golden A & B did not investigate Basher Salihi’s or Alia Salihi’s employment record.� 


Counts 41 through 44 allege that Golden A & B failed to conduct an annual review of Basher Salihi’s driving record.  This alleges a violation of § 391.25.  Counts 45 through 48 allege that Golden A & B failed to conduct an annual review of Alia Salihi’s driving record.�  It is found that Golden A & B did not conduct an annual review of Basher Salihi or Alia Salihi.  However, Staff has charged these violations as continuing viola-tions, seeking a penalty of $100 for each time a driver drove without Golden A & B having conducted an annual review.  In the ALJ’s mind this focuses on the driving rather than the annual review, which is the substantive requirement.  Since the annual review is only required to be performed once every 12 months, it does not appear appropriate to charge these violations as continuing violations.  Therefore Golden A & B is found to have violated count 41 for Basher Salihi and count 45 for Alia Salihi.  These are the earliest dates on which those drivers drove as charged.


Counts 49 through 52 allege that Golden A & B failed to maintain a copy of driver Basher Salihi’s drivers license in its records.  This alleges a violation of § 391.51(c)(4).  However, Golden A & B produced at hearing a copy of driver Basher Salihi’s drivers license, which it contends was in his possession although unavailable on the date of inspection due to flooding.  Therefore it is found that counts 49 through 52 were not proven.


Counts 53 through 56 allege that Golden A & B failed to require Basher Salihi to prepare a vehicle inspection report and file it on a daily basis under § 396.11(a).  Golden A & B has provided a vehicle check list, see Exhibit 17.  The exhibit was admitted over Staff’s objection that it was of recent fabrica-tion.  However, the ALJ gives no weight to Exhibit 17.  It does not comply with the requirement for the inspection reports, which requires a daily report to be signed daily.  This report covering an entire month does appear to have been recently fabricated, and even if authentic it does not comply with the requirements of § 396.11.  Therefore it is found that Staff has established vio-lations 53 through 56.


Counts 57 through 60 allege that Golden A & B failed to require driver Alia Salihi to prepare a vehicle inspection report on four dates.  Golden A & B’s defense that Alia Salihi is not a driver has been rejected.  Staff is found to have proven counts 57 through 60.


summary


Staff is found to have established by a preponderance of the evidence violations alleged on lines 1 through 16, 21 through 24, 41, 45, and 53 through 60.


The violations alleged on lines 17 through 20, 25 through 40, 42 through 44, 46 through 48, and 49 through 52 of CPAN No. 97-E-6-7 were not proven and should be dismissed.


This Commission has established by rule the amount of penalties to be assessed for violations of the Commission’s Motor Carrier Safety Rules by luxury limousine providers.  See 4 CCR 723-22.  Further, the amounts of the penalties are mandatory, that is, the ALJ has no discretion in fining less than the amount stated.  Therefore the total amount of the penalty is determined by reference to those rules.  Such reference indicates that for the 30 violations found in this order, a total penalty should be assessed in the amount of $2,000.�


In accordance with § 40-6-109, C.R.S., it is recom-mended that the Commission enter the following order.


�
order


The Commission Orders That:


Golden A & B Limousine, Inc., Lakewood, Colorado, is assessed a civil penalty in the amount of $2,000 for the vio-lations alleged on lines 1 through 16, 21 through 24, 41, 45, and 53 through 60 of Civil Penalty Assessment Notice No. 97-E-C-7.  Golden A & B Limousine, Inc., shall pay this sum within ten days of the effective date of this Order.


The violations alleged on lines 17 through 20, 25 through 40, 42 through 44, 46 through 48, and 49 through 52 of Civil Penalty Assessment Notice No. 97-E-C-7 are dismissed.


This Recommended Decision shall be effective on the day it becomes the Decision of the Commission, if that is the case, and is entered as of the date above.  


As provided by § 40-6-109, C.R.S., copies of this Recommended Decision shall be served upon the parties, who may file exceptions to it.  


If no exceptions are filed within 20 days after service or within any extended period of time authorized, or unless the decision is stayed by the Commission upon its own motion, the recommended decision shall become the decision of the Commission and subject to the provisions of § 40-6-115, C.R.S.


If a party seeks to amend, modify, annul, or reverse basic findings of fact in its exceptions, that party must request and pay for a transcript to be filed, or the parties may stipulate to portions of the transcript according to the pro-cedure stated in § 40-6-113, C.R.S.  If no transcript or stip-ulation is filed, the Commission is bound by the facts set out by the administrative law judge and the parties cannot challenge these facts.  This will limit what the Commission can review if exceptions are filed.


If exceptions to this Decision are filed, they shall not exceed 30 pages in length, unless the Commission for good cause shown permits this limit to be exceeded.


THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION�OF THE STATE OF COLORADO����KEN F. KIRKPATRICK�________________________________


Administrative Law Judge
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� All references, unless otherwise specified, are to Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations, as of July 1993, which have been adopted by this Commission by reference in 4 CCR 723-15.


� Golden A & B stated that its records were in disarray, having been temporarily relocated due to flooding.


� For example, the application contains no list of previous motor vehicle law convictions; no list of previous employment; and no certificate of authenticity.


� Staff charged a violation of § 391.23(a)(1).  This section does not require any recordkeeping.  Staff’s evidence may have supported a finding of a violation of § 391.23(b), which is a recordkeeping requirement, since no record of the inquiry was found.  However, that is not the section that Staff chose to charge.


� Staff alleged a violation of § 391.23(a)(2).  Similar to counts 25 through 32, Staff has not alleged in counts 33 through 40 any recordkeeping violation.  Rather, Staff has charged the underlying substantive violation, of which it introduced no evidence.  The recordkeeping requirement is contained in § 391.23(c).


� Unlike the violations alleged in counts 25 through 40, the section charged in counts 41 through 48 does contain its own recordkeeping require-ment.


� The total is derived as follows:  violations 1 through 8 at $100 each total $800; violations 9 through 16 at $50 each total $400; violations 21 through 24 at $50 each total $200; violations 41 and 45 at $100 each total $200; and violations 53 through 60 at $50 each total $400.  The sum of these is $2,000.
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